
Document last changed: 4/29/2009 8:19 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, May 04, 2009 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
6:00 p.m. Discussion on Fire Hydrant Policy   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Barbara Snowden to discuss "Currituck Day" at the Museum 
of the Albemarle   

Item 4 Proclamation for the National Day of Prayer   

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-56 Julia Loening:  Request to 
establish a Conditional District - General Business (CD-GB) 
Overlay Zone on 1.5 acres.  The property is located at 200 Barnard 
Road, Tax Map 94, Lot 25, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-05 Dave Holton:  Request to 
amend the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance, 
Chapter 3, Section 3.10.7.3.A and Section 3.10.7.3.B regarding 
telecommunication towers and structure setbacks on the subject 
property. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-11 Outer Banks Community 
Development Corporation: Request to amend the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 3: Special Requirements, 
Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements, and Chapter 17: Definitions 
to provide a density bonus for attached workforce housing 
developments in the General Business zoning district. 

1



Document last changed: 4/29/2009 8:19 AM 

 
Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 00-44 Holly Ridge:  Preliminary 

Plat/Special Use Permit for 33 lots located on the northwest side of 
Guinea Road (SR 1214), approximately 200' north of the 
intersection with Guinea Mill Road (SR1282), Tax Map 22, Parcel 
71X, Moyock Township. 

Item 9 Appointments to ABC Board   

Item 10 Appointments to Fire & EMS Advisory Board   

Item 11 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget amendments 
2. Petition to NCDOT for Addition of Pine Circle to State System 
3. Approval of April 20, 2009, Minutes 

Item 12 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 13 County Manager’s Report 

Item 14 Closed Session: 
1. According to 143-318(5) land acquisition, Donald Stone, Spot 

Road, to be used for any public purpose 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority Meeting 

Budget Amendments 

 

2



S te 4 i

i

May yourunaiiing love rest upon us U Lord even as we put ourhope in yoi Psan332z

Dear Commissioners

Please find attached a proposal for the Proclamation for the National Day of

Prayer for Currituck County The format and wording ofthis proclamation
is the same as it has been in the past with exceptions to date and theme As
is stated in this document the act ofprayer has been an important part of

Currituck Countyshistory and we the Christian community which live in

Currituck hope and pray you will continue to support the National Day of

Prayer Ifyou would please place this item on an upcoming agenda and if

possible please contactme when this will be read so I can be on the

program to personally thank you I would appreciate it

Thank you for your service to our county and please knowthat there are

people who pray for you on a regular basis Also know that we would like
to give you a special invitation tojoin us at the Currituck CountyCourthouse
at 1200 noon on Thursday May72009 for a National Day ofPrayer
program as we join together to pray for our nationThe keynote speaker
this year will be the Honorable Judge Edgar Barnes and we will have others
from our area toparticipate in songs and prayers

Ifyou would like more information about this event please contactme at

4356508 May the Almighty God grant you wisdom and health all year

Because ofChrist

Janis Adams
P O Box 13

Moyock NC 27958

3



NATIONAL DAY OF PRAYER

MAY 7 2009

BY THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

A PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS National Days of Prayer have been part of our countrys heritage since the
first one was declared by the Continental Congress in 1775 and

WHEREAS leaders of our Nation have relied upon the power of prayer throughoutAmerican history and

WHEREAS May 7 2009 marks the 58t consecutive observance ofthe National Day of
Prayer as mandated by both Houses of Congress and by our President in Public Law
100307 and May 7 2009 has been set aside as our National Day ofPrayer

WHEREAS it is good that we acknowledge that we are all Gods handiwork and that itis appropriate to call upon Him in prayer and

WHEREAS National Day of Prayers theme is Prayer AmericasHope and the
scripture is May your unfailing love rest upon us O Lord even as we put our hope in
you Psalm 3322

WHEREAS while American troops fight for democracy and freedom around the globeand battle the war on terror citizens of the United States will gather on May 7 2009 to
worship and pray for the American troops our nation churches families schools and
governmental leaders asking the Lord to grant them wisdom for the challenges they face
on adaily basis

NOW THEREFORE the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County North
Carolina do hereby proclaim May 7 2009 as NATIONAL DAY OF PRAYER in
Currituck North Carolina and urge our citizens to join together in their homes places of
work and places of worship to pray for the unity of the hearts of all mankind and to
continue in prayer for our State and our Nation

ADOPTED this the 4th day of May 2009

J Owen Etheridge
ATTEST Currituck County Board of Commissioners

GwenH Keene CMC

4



 
PB 08-56  

Julia Loening   CD-GB 
Page 1 of 6 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING DATE: May 4, 2009 

Conditional District Zoning Map Amendment:  
PB 08-56 Julia Loening 

 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone 1.50 acres from C to CD-GB. 
 
LOCATION:  Located at 200 Barnard Road, on the north side of the intersection of  

NC 158, Caratoke Highway.   
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 94, Parcel 25 

0094-000-0025-0000 
  
OWNER: Matthias and Julia Loening 
 1422B Duck Road 
 Duck, NC  27949  
 
APPLICANT: Matthias and Julia Loening 
 1422B Duck Road 
 Duck, NC  27949 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Commercial (C) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS: The applicant has excluded the following uses from the conditional 

district: 
• Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios 
• Landfills, Demolition 
• Landfills, Reclamation 

 
ZONING HISTORY: The property was rezoned from Agricultural (A) to Commercial (C) on 

November 15, 2004. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential GB 
SOUTH: Residential A 
EAST: Residential/Outdoor Storage GB/A 
WEST: Residential A 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: The existing building was previously used as a church. 
 
PURPOSE LAND USE:  Residential and commercial uses. 

5



 
PB 08-56  

Julia Loening   CD-GB 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Grandy Sub area.  
 

The purpose of the Full Service Area class is to provide areas preferred 
for community centers.  Areas designated as Full Service are those 
parts of the county where a broad range of infrastructure and service 
investments have been provided or will be made available to the public 
and/or private sectors.  With nonresidential uses, it is essential that the 
existing community character be preserved. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Grandy Sub-Area is to allow Grandy to 
further evolve as a community center.  Residential development 
densities should be medium to high depending upon available services.   
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this request: 
 
POLICY CD1.    NEIGHBORHOOD SERVING COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICTS should be encouraged to locate where a collector or 
secondary street intersects with a street of equal or greater size.  
Appropriately designated, small-scale businesses may also be near 
other neighborhood serving facilities such as schools and parks. 
 
POLICY CD4.   HIGHWAY ORIENTED COMMERCIAL USES  should 
be clustered along segments of highways and contain land uses which  
are mutually compatible and reinforcing in use and design; they should 
be designed in such a way as to minimize signage, access points, and 
to prevent unsightly, dysfunctional STRIP DEVELOPMENT. 

 
PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The Lower Currituck Fire Department provides fire protection for this 

area.  Electric, telephone, cable television, and public water are 
available.  On-site wastewater exists on the property. 

 
FLOOD ZONE: Flood Zone X. 
 
WETLANDS: The wetland inventory maps do not identify wetlands on the site. 
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains suitable 

soils. 
 
 

 

6



 
PB 08-56  

Julia Loening   CD-GB 
Page 3 of 6 

STAFF  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to establish a 1.5 acre tract 

from Commercial (C) to Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
based on the following reasons: 

  
1. The proposed request is in general compliance with the Full Service 

designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the Grandy Sub-Area 
Policy Emphasis. 

 
2. The proposed zoning conditions are consistent with the objectives of 

the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance and 2006 
Land Use Plan and promote compatibility between the subject 
property and surrounding area (LUP Policies CD5 and OB5) 

 
 Outstanding Staff Concerns: The conditional zoning process provides 

an opportunity for an applicant to propose use limitations or 
development conditions that ensure development proposals are 
consistent with the policies set forth in adopted plans.  Staff feels the 
following concerns could be appropriately addressed through the 
conditional zoning process. 

 
1. The 2006 Land Use Plan discourages the placement of adjacent 

incompatible land uses (LUP Policy HN9 and CD5).  Such 
incompatible land uses could include large-scale commercial uses 
or automobile–oriented commercial uses such as service stations, 
car lots, car washes, drive through restaurants, and the like.  Staff 
recommends the following automobile-oriented commercial uses be 
excluded from the property: 

a. Automobile Rental, Service and Repair 
b. Boat Rental, Service and Repair 
c. Heavy Equipment Rental, Service and Repair 
d. Car Washes 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to approve the request to rezone 1.50 acres from Commercial to Conditional 
District-General Business due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and with the following 
conditions: 

1. The following uses shall be excluded: 
a. Boat Rental, Service and Repair 
b. Heavy Equipment Rental, Service and Repair 
c. Car Washes 

2.  Lighting shall meet the standards of the Outer Banks overlay requirements 
3. Outdoor storage screening will be provided 

Ms. Newbern seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

7



 
PB 08-56  

Julia Loening   CD-GB 
Page 4 of 6 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Ms. Loening stated they do not agree with all of the excluded uses for a conditional district as 
recommended by staff. They are in agreement to Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios, Landfills, 
Demolition, and Landfills, Reclamation.  Ms. Loening asked that no more limitations are put on the 
property.  If they should have to sell the property in the future it will make it more difficult with so 
many excluded uses. Ms. Loening stated the reason they are asking for this request is so they could 
have residential on site. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked what they are planning to do with the property. 
 
Ms. Loening stated office space for medical or dental.  
 
Mr. West stated that with a conditional zoning request the applicant has the option of what you won’t 
do with property or what you will do with the property. The Planning Board’s desire is to have more 
of an indication of what will be done with the property. Mr. West stated the zoning and limitations 
would go with the property if you were to sell it; then the next person could put these items which 
have not been excluded.  
 
Ms. Loening stated they are asking for General Business so they can have residential on the site. 
They would like to have offices on the first floor and residential on the second floor. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that what ever is put on the property it will affect the properties across the street 
which is residential. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that the property is currently zoned commercial. Conditional zoning is a tool which 
has been adopted by the Board of Commissioners. Since the adoption of this the Board has given 
the direction to clean up the corridors of the county.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that access to the property was Barnard Road and not the highway.  
 
Ms. White stated they could apply for access to the property from the highway. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. Woody that since the property is zoned commercial now and they are asking to 
change it to general business (GB), does this mean they can have the same exact businesses on 
this lot now with the only exception under GB they can have residential.  
 
Mr. Woody stated yes but there may be a few differences.  
 
Ms. White stated if the board was to allow general business maybe a compromise is to allow the 
applicant to provide outdoor storage screening and lighting that would meet the standards of the 
Outer Banks overlay requirements.   
 
Ms. Loening stated she is fine with these conditions. 
 

8



 
PB 08-56  

Julia Loening   CD-GB 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

9



 
PB 08-56  

Julia Loening   CD-GB 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 

10



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: April 27, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 09-05 Dave Holton Text Amendment – Telecommunication Towers 
 
 
 
Mr. Holton is requesting a text amendment to Chapter 3, Section 3.10.7.3 of the UDO 
regarding telecommunication tower setback requirements from structures.    The current 
ordinance does specify a tower setback provision from property lines and existing 
dwellings on adjacent properties.  However, there is no reference to setbacks from 
existing or proposed dwellings located on the subject property.  This amendment 
request will clarify that there is not a setback requirement between a telecommunication 
tower and a structure located on the same individual parcel.  This amendment request 
does not absolve the UDO requirement that telecommunication towers exceeding 50’ in 
height receive a conditional use permit. 
 
Staff feels the proposed text amendment is reasonable and recommends approval as 
the request simply clarifies the existing setback language in the UDO.  Attached please 
find the Planning Board meeting minutes and recommendation for approval, proposed 
text amendment, and copy of the application.   
 
Should you have any questions, please contact Ben Woody, Planning Director, at 232-
6029

11



 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this was for new construction of a dwelling or an existing structure 
on the property.  
 
Ms. White stated it does not specify new or existing so it would be for both. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked about the liability if the owner sells the property.  
 
Mr. Holton stated he has looked into if there would be any additional insurance 
requirements. Mr. Holton stated there are no direct comments made to cell towers in 
North Carolina. It does affect the beach plan under wind damage in a hurricane. The 
county does not have any extended liability. Mr. Holton stated this text amendment will 
bring it in line with what they are finding in other areas. 
  
The board discussed minimum setbacks and fall areas. 
 
Mr. West stated that the text amendment is saying you can build next to a tower on your 
own property, but you still have the setback from adjoining properties.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the height of the tower is in questioned. 
 
Mr. Holton stated 185 feet. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval of the text amendment regarding 
telecommunication towers and structure setbacks on the subject property as presented. 
Mr. Etheridge seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

 
 

Dave Holton 
PB 09-05 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 3, Section 3.10.7.3.A and Section 3.10.7.3.B regarding 
telecommunication tower setback requirements from structures located on the subject 
property. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Sections 3.10.7.3.A and B are amended as follows: 
 
A. Towers and antennas shall be required to maintain a one foot setback from front, 

side, and rear property lines for every one foot of tower height.  Guy wires, when 
applicable shall conform to district setback provisions.  There shall be no setback 
requirements from structures located on the subject property. 

 
B. Tower height on existing towers may increase up to ten percent of the tower height 

for the collocation of antennae with no increase in setbacks provided that 
reasonable evidence is submitted showing that the need for an additional tower is 
eliminated.  A North Carolina licensed engineer must certify that the extension’s fall 
zone will not encroach on adjoining property and FAA approval must be granted for 
the extension. The one foot setback for every one foot in height shall be maintained 
from existing dwellings on adjoining properties but does not include the subject 
property.  Continuous proof of at least $1 million in liability insurance must be 
maintained and filed with the Planning Department on an annual basis. 

 
 
 
Item 2: The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 
shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair 
any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application. 
 
 
Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 2009. 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 

13



 

 
 

Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE: 3/10/09 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

14



 

 
 

 
 

15



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: April 27, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 09-11 Outer Banks CDC – Workforce Housing 
 
 
 
The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Outer Banks Community Development 
Corporation (OBX-CDC) is intended to provide for workforce housing in Currituck 
County.  The amendment will establish a 20 percent density bonus for workforce 
housing units that meet specific management and design requirements.  The density 
bonus is derived from individual workforce housing units and is not applied to market-
rate dwellings. 
 
Considering the County’s estimated 2007 median home value was $233,800, planning 
staff feels there is a real need for workforce housing in Currituck County.  By 
comparison the nationwide median home value was $181,800.  In partnering with the 
OBX-CDC, this text amendment provides a reasonable mechanism to provide workforce 
housing.  The density bonus will help lessen the impact of land costs, thereby lowering 
the overall cost of a home.  At the same time, the ordinance provides safeguards to 
ensure the housing is properly managed and offered to those most in need. 
 
While this amendment request addresses workforce housing on a basic level, there are 
other issues that may warrant further consideration.  Currently the county does not 
adequately provide for accessory dwelling units, which may offer additional housing 
options for elderly parents or older children.  Some jurisdictions have also provided fee 
waivers or fast-tracking options for legitimate workforce housing projects. 
 
The implementation of workforce housing provisions is supported by the 2006 Land Use 
Plan and staff does recommend approval of this request. 
 
The Planning Board recommendation for approval and minutes from the April 14, 2009 
meeting are attached, as well as the proposed text amendment. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-6029. 

16



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 2 of 9 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked for clarification on whether you could not charge over 80% of the 
median home value. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the home has to be affordable to a family with a gross annual income 
of 80% of the median income for Currituck County.   
 
Mr. Poe stated the median income for a family of four is a little over $60,000. 
 
Mr. West asked if the house is valued on income or the median home value. 
 
Mr. Woody stated it is valued on the income. 
 
Mr. West asked what happens when the income goes up or down. 
 
Mr. Poe stated there is an annual income recertification of the rent for the home. The 
developer can adjust the rent as long as it does not exceed 80% of their income.  If they 
exceed that 80% level there is no conduit to evict the family.    
 
Mr. West asked if the income starts coming down will the rent be adjusted. 
 
Mr. Poe stated yes. Mr. Poe stated Jarvis Landing is a tax credit project with a minimum 
rent that is set based on the cash flow of the project. Mr. Poe said that during the annual 
income recertification this gives them the opportunity to also do an inspection of the 
property.  
 
Mr. Woody stated this applies to rental and ownership of the property.  
 
Mr. Poe discussed a blended community which would be a mixture of rental and 
ownership of property. Mr. Poe stated Dare County and Kill Devil Hills has one 
workforce housing project. In Kill Devil Hills there were twenty units approved. They 
have built out the first two buildings for which ten units have sold. In Dare County there 
are twenty-one units that are presently under construction. Five units are rented and a 
contract on two for sale.    
 
The board discussed the language be revised or clarified stating you are presently 
residing in Currituck County for more than 1 year. The board also discussed if workforce 
housing brings down adjoining property owners values. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked that in Item B the 1.2 be changed to reflect 20%.  
 
Ms. Wilson asked if priority could be given to people who work in the Outer Banks. 
 
 

17



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 3 of 9 

Mr. Poe stated that in the management of these units the Outer Banks Community 
Development Corporation can submit a management admission criteria requesting this, 
which can outline priorities.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommended approval of the text amendment with the two 
changes as presented.  Mr. West seconded the motion. Motion approved unanimously. 

18



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 4 of 9 

Outer Banks CDC – Workforce Housing 
PB 09-11 

UDO Amendment Request 
 
An amendment to Chapter 3: Special Requirements, Chapter 10: Subdivision 
Requirements, and Chapter 17: Definitions to provide a density bonus for attached 
workforce housing developments in the General Business zoning district. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Chapter 3: Special Requirements, Section 3.2.6 is amended by deleting 
the strikethrough language and adding the following underlined language: 
 
3.2.6  Multi-Family (townhomes, condos, apartments, duplexes, conversions)  
  

3.2.6.1 Use 
 
A. Multi-family and two-family residences are permissible in accordance with the 

Permitted Uses Table. 
 
B. Multi-family and two-family residences may be located only on lots fronting on 

a state maintained road or a street constructed to meet state standards and 
offered for dedication to the state.  

 
3.2.6.2 Dimensional Requirements 
Lots and dwelling units in multi-family residential developments as allowed in the 
Permitted Uses Table shall meet the following minimum dimensional requirements: 

 
Minimum Size Minimum Yard Requirements Max. 

Height 
Number of 

Dwelling Units 
(1) 

Min. Lot 
Size Tract 

Area 

Min. Lot 
Tract 
Width 

(overall) 

Min. Lot 
Width 
(units) 

Front  
Setback  

(ft.) 

Side  
Setback  

(ft.) 

Rear  
Setback  

(ft.) 

Structure 
Height 

(ft.) 
2  80,000 sf 125 feet 

 
16 feet 20 15 25 35 

3-7 106,000 sf 
+ 5,000 for 

each 
additional 

unit up to 7 
units 

125 feet 
 

16 feet 20 (exterior) 
 

40 (building 
separation) 

20 (exterior) 
 

20 (building 
separation) 

25 (exterior) 
 

40 (building 
separation) 

35 

8+ 133,000 sf 
plus 17,000 

for each 
unit over 8 

units 

125 feet 
 

16 feet 20 (exterior) 
 

40 (building 
separation) 

20 (exterior) 
 

20 (building 
separation) 

25 (exterior) 
 

40 (building 
separation) 

35 

19



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 5 of 9 

(1) In determining the number of dwelling units permissible on a tract of land fractions shall be 
dropped. 

 
3.2.6.3 Development Standards 

 
A. In determining the number of dwelling units permissible on a tract of land 

fractions shall be dropped. 
 
A. There shall be a maximum of one entrance allowed per development onto US 

158, NC Highway 168, NC Highway 34, NC Highway 136, or Tulls Creek 
Road. 

 
B. No accessory structure shall be less than ten feet from another structure. 
 
C. No two units or structures shall be considered attached unless such units or 

structures share at least five feet of common wall. 
 
D. No improved recreation area shall be located within required exterior 

setbacks or within 20 feet of any dwelling unit.   
 
E. No building shall exceed a length of 160 feet.   
 
F. 305 percent of the total tract area shall be reserved as common open space 

in accordance with Section 10.4 Open Space Standards. 
 

G. All new on-site utilities shall be located underground unless required by the 
utility to be otherwise. 

 
H. Any multi-family development providing on-site garbage dumpsters is subject 

to the following: 
 

1. Dumpsters must be located to the rear of the principal structure(s); 
 
2. Dumpsters shall be screened on three sides with eight foot tall opaque 

fencing; and, 
 

3. Dumpsters shall be located to be sufficiently accessed by service 
vehicles. 

 
I. All multi-family developments shall be designed to be architecturally 

compatible with the surrounding area to the extent possible.  Building 
elevations shall be approved by the administrator prior to the issuance of any 
zoning permit. 

 
J. A building that, (i) was in existence prior to April 1, 1985 and, (ii) contained at 

least 2,000 square feet of heated floor area may be converted into a multi-
family or two-family dwelling in accordance with the Permitted Uses Table 

20



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 6 of 9 

without regard to the minimum lot size requirements of this Section, but 
subject to the following:   

 
1. The off-street parking requirements of Chapter 8 must be satisfied; 
 
2. If the lot does not contain the minimum number of square feet required, 

the building may not be enlarged in the conversion process to an extent 
greater than ten percent of the heated floor area of the original building; 
and, 

 
3. The building may not contain more than nine bedrooms and no more 

than six dwelling units. 
 

3.2.6.4 Workforce Housing Density Bonus 
The purpose of this subsection is to encourage the development of high-quality 
housing that promotes the public health, safety, and welfare by advancing 
affordable housing options for households of all income levels, ages and size in 
order to meet the county’s goal of preserving and promoting a culturally and 
economically diverse population.  

 
A. Eligible Household 

 
1. A group of individuals or family that occupy one housing unit on a year 

round basis with a total combined adjusted gross annual income at or 
below 80 percent of Median Family Income (MFI) for Currituck County; 

 
a. The income of all individuals age 18 or older residing in the housing 

unit shall be counted toward the total adjusted gross annual income 
for the eligible household.  This provision does not include income 
earned by any member of the household that is enrolled in good 
standing and pursing a degree program at an accredited college or 
university; 

 
2. For home ownership, housing must be priced such that no more than 32 

percent of the gross household income is spent on direct housing costs 
(mortgage principal, interest, taxes, homeowner’s insurance, and 
mandatory homeowner’s association dues); 

 
3. For rentals, housing must rent for a total annual amount at or below 30 

percent of Median Family Income (MFI) for Currituck County; and, 
 

4. At least 1 member of the eligible household, age 18 or older, must be 
employed in Currituck County or presently reside in Currituck County for 
a period greater than 1 year. 

 
 

21



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 7 of 9 

B. The gross density in workforce housing developments may be increased by a 
maximum of 20 percent subject to the following requirements: 
 
1. The density bonus shall only apply to, and be used for, workforce 

housing units and shall not be used to supplement market-rate housing; 
 
2. Workforce housing units shall be used exclusively for year-round 

occupancy by eligible households; 
 

3. A workforce housing plan and development agreement shall be 
developed by the applicant and include policies that require all tenants 
or owners to achieve payment in a manner consistent with the present 
market and in an unsubsidized manner; 

 
4. A community development corporation or other designated not-for-profit, 

as approved by Currituck County, shall monitor the management of 
workforce housing units and provide an annual report to the 
administrator; 

 
5. The exterior of workforce housing units shall have the same building 

materials and finish, and be effectively indistinguishable from, market-
rate housing units of the same housing type; and, 

 
6. In developments that integrate workforce housing units with market-rate 

housing, the following additional design requirements shall apply: 
 

a. Workforce housing units shall be integrated into the development to 
the same extent as market-rate dwelling units and shall not be 
clustered in discrete locations separate from other dwelling units; 

 
b. The construction of workforce housing units shall reasonably 

coincide with that of other market-rate units. 
 
 
Item 2: That Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements, Section 10.4.2 is amended by 
deleting the strikethrough language and adding the following underlined language: 
 
10.4.2 Minimum Open Space Requirements (not including Conservation 
Subdivisions) 
Open space shall be dedicated in accordance with the table below.  Percentages are 
based on total development area.  At least 50 percent of the open space required shall 
be lands suitable for development and shall not include, among other things, wetlands 
(CAMA, 404, 401), and swamps.  Recreational amenities, such as water front access 
sites and picnic areas, shall be allowed within required open space areas.  Portions of 
required open space shall also be allowed for dedication to the county for the 
development of necessary public facilities such as schools. 
 

22



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 8 of 9 

Number of Units/ 
Development Type 

Minimum Percent  
Open Space 

0-20 
Single-family 0 

21-30 
Single-family 20% 

31-40 
Single-family 30% 

40+ 
Single-family 45%* 

Multi-family, two-family, 
or mixed residential (no 

Subdivision) 305% 

PRD or PUD 35%** 
Other Residential 

Development 15% 
 
*see Section 10.4.4 for additional Conservation Subdivision Open Space requirements 
**see Section 10.4.5 for additional PUD Open Space requirements 
 
 
Item 3: That Chapter 17: Definitions is amended by deleting the strikethrough language, 
adding the underlined language and reordering in alphabetical order the following 
acronyms and definitions: 
 
Section 17.1 Acronyms 
Below is a list of acronyms (other than zoning districts) and their meanings found 
throughout the Ordinance: 
 

• CDC: Community Development Corporation 
• MFI: Median Family Income 

 
 
Section 17.2 Definitions 
 
Community Development Corporation 
A quasi-public nonprofit corporation organized under bylaws to carry out certain public 
purposes. 
 
Median Family Income 
The median family income for Currituck County as determined annually by the 
standards set forth by the US Department of Housing and Urban  Development and as 
applied by the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency. 
 
Workforce Housing 
Housing with a recorded restriction that requires the housing for a certain minimum 
number of years to be rented or owned by families and individuals whose income at 
initial occupancy is no more than the household income threshold requirement ( 

23



 

PB 09-11 Workforce Housing 
Page 9 of 9 

percentage of the Median Family Income) as determined by Currituck County based on 
annual standards set forth by the US Department of Housing and Urban  Development 
and as applied by the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency.  Thereafter such units 
shall be rented or sold, subject to restrictions on appreciation as determined by the 
county and a designated community development corporation to be reasonable and 
necessary to maintain long-term affordability. 
 
 
Item 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 5: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

24



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 1 of 7 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: May 4, 2009 
PB 00-44 Holly Ridge 

Conventional Major Subdivision 
 

 
ITEM:   PB 00-44 Holly Ridge, Preliminary Plat/Special Use Permit, for a 33 

lot subdivision.  
 

LOCATION: On the northwest side of Guinea Road (SR 1214), approximately 
200’ north of the intersection with Guinea Mill Road (SR 1282), 
Moyock Township. 

TAX ID: Tax Map 22, Parcel 71X 
 
ZONING    
DISTRICT: Residential (R) 
 
PRESENT USE: Agricultural 
 
OWNERS:  Old Brothers, LLC. 
   Attn: Kim Old 
   101 Commerce Drive 
   Moyock, NC 27958 
 
ENGINEER:  Mel Hopkins Engineering 
   204 Walden Dr. 
   Yorktown, VA 23692 

   
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Low density residential uses/farmland A 
SOUTH Low density residential uses//farmland A 
EAST: Low density residential/farmland A 
WEST: Farmland A 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service 

within the Moyock subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: Total Development:  53.29 acres 
 

25



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 2 of 7 

NUMBER OF UNITS: 33 total residential lots 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: 1.62 units/ acre 
 
STREETS: The streets will be built to NCDOT design and construction 

standards.   
 
UTILITIES: The development will be served by county water.  The 

proposed water usage is 12,600 gpd.  The applicant is 
proposing on-site wastewater systems for each lot. 

 
OPEN SPACE: The UDO requires this subdivisions to dedicate 30 percent of 

the net area as open space.  The required open space for 
this development is 15.99 acres, and the proposed 
preliminary plat indicates 17.51 acres as open space. 

 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The applicant is seeking preliminary plat/SUP approval for 33 lots within a 
proposed conventional subdivision. 

• This subdivision was formerly known as Clover Bend. 
• In January 2004, the Board of Commissioners granted sketch plan approval for 

17 residential lots. 
• In December 2005, the Board of Commissioners granted amended sketch plan 

approval for 16 residential lots. 
• In October 2007, the Board of Commissioners rezoned this property from 

Agricultural (A) to Residential (R). 
• In January 2008, the Board of Commissioners granted amended sketch plan to 

allow 33 lots in this subdivision. 
 

II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility 
in the administration of the UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which 
would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject 
to conditions of approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve an SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and 
suggested findings of fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete. 

 

26



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 3 of 7 

2. THE PROPOSED USE IS AMONG THOSE LISTED IN THE TABLE OF 
PERMISSIBLE USES AS A SPECIAL USE INDICATED WITH AN “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Chapter 10 of the UDO allows a major subdivision as a permissible use with a 

special use permit. 
 
3. THE CONDITIONS PROPOSED MEET OR EXCEED THE MINIMUM 

REQUIREMENTS OF THIS ORDINANCE. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed meet the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 

 
4. THE SPECIAL USE WILL NOT ENDANGER THE PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY: 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed subdivision should have little to no impact on public health or 

safety. 
 
5. THE SPECIAL USE WILL NOT INJURE THE VALUE OF ADJOINING OR 

ABUTTING PROPERTY AND WILL BE IN HARMONY WITH THE AREA IN WHICH 
IT IS LOCATED 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The Unified Development Ordinance indicates that a conventional major 

subdivision is allowed in the R zoning district with a special use permit. 
b. The parcel is currently within a neighborhood with densities similar to those 

proposed and should be in harmony with that neighborhood.   
 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially 

adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Moyock 

subarea and the proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of 
which are: 
i. Policy ES1 states “New development shall be permitted to locate only in 

areas with suitable soil.”  The soils map indicates that the majority of the soils 
on this lot are either marginal or not suitable.  Engineering solutions may be 
supported provided that environmental concerns are fully addressed. 

ii. Policy HN1 states “Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at 
densities appropriate for the location.”  The proposed subdivision is within the 
densities allowed for the location. 

iii. The Moyock subarea policy emphasizes properly managing the increased 
urban level of growth that this area is to experience.  Residential densities 
should be limited to one to two units per acre where on-site wastewater is 
proposed and other county services are limited. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public 

facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and 
other county facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed 

27



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 4 of 7 

for determining when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place 
or programmed to be in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan 
(sketch plan in the case of major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The county should have adequate public facilities to service this subdivision. 

 
 
III. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Since the submittal appears to meet all of the requirements for preliminary plat/SUP 
approval, staff recommends approval of this plat/SUP subject to the following 
conditions: 
1. The preliminary plat dated March 20, 2009 shall be approved subject to the 

following: 
a. Correct open space calculations in notes to match that which is shown on the 

plat. 
b. Provide perk test for lots 1, 10, and 11.  These lots were previously shown as 

open space.   
2. Tap fees shall be due prior to final plat approval for each lot.  
3. Interconnectivity shall be dedicated to the adjacent parcel currently owned by Lyman 

Sawyer, Louis Sawyer, and Minnie Arnold (Tax Map 22, Parcel 60) and shall be 
recorded on the final plat for the development . 

4. All street connections shall be paved to the property line with signs installed 
indicating connection to future development.  A note shall be added to the final plat 
that indicates that the adjacent land owner or developer may connect to this street 
and will not restrict or prevent the interconnection and infrastructure improvements 
within this dedicated right-of-way. 
 “This subdivision contains a right-of-way that is platted with the intent of being 
extended and continued to and from adjoining properties.  Access within the right of 
way for streets and utilities shall not be restricted.” 
 

5. Maintenance access drainage easements are required along all ditches.  The 
easement shall include the width of the ditch from top of embankment to top of 
embankment and shall include an additional 25 foot wide maintenance area 
extending from the top of the embankment.  (Section 9.6) 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations and that 
applicant/developer meet with Parks and Recreation to determine the best recreation 
use on this property. Mr. Clark seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.

28



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 5 of 7 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he was concerned with the appropriateness of a soccer field in 
the center of the open space for this development which is a 33 lot subdivision. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has been meeting 
recently to discuss the development of open space and how it will relate to a recreation 
master plan. 
 
Mr. Hopkins stated it could or may not be a soccer field. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the applicant would be willing to work with the parks and recreation 
department to provide something that would be more suitable for this subdivision. 
 
Mr. Old stated yes but within reason. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the ponds are detention or retention. 
 
Mr. Hopkins stated retention and it will be six feet deep. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the ponds will be aerated.  
 
Mr. Hopkins stated that ponds that are usually six feet deep do well. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he worked for a company for three years and his job was 
stormwater pond management. Most of these ponds are not aerated with a large pump.  
These ponds require monthly maintenance either by the developer or the homeowner’s 
association.  A stormwater pond is not made to have cat tails, willow trees or any 
foreign object to grow in them. The water surface is to remain completely open because 
it is a stormwater pond and it can’t do its job unless it is completely open.  
 
Mr. West asked how much of the property will need to be filled. 
 
Mr. Old stated they will have fill where the septic drain field area is located and where 
the house pad will need to be raised. 
 
Mr. Clark stated if this is recommended for approval that the stormwater pond be 
maintained either by the developer or homeowner’s association. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that the county ordinance requires that the maintenance be 
transferred to the homeowner’s association once fifty percent of the lots have been sold.  
The county sets up the framework for these ponds to be maintained, but does not over 
see if they are being properly maintained. Mr. Woody suggested having the county’s 
engineer come to a work session and talk to the board about stormwater infrastructure.  
 
 
 

29



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 6 of 7 
30



 
PB 00-44  Holly Ridge  
Preliminary Plat/SUP 

Page 7 of 7 

 

31



32



ABC BOARD

After initial term expires their successors

shall be appointed fora 3 year term

Charles Eley Chairman
P O Box 293
Moyock NC 27958

Jan 2007 Jan 2010
2d term

David Myers
1552 Waterlily Road
Coinjock NC 27923

Horace Bell III
122 Carotauk Drive
Currituck NC 27929
2323310

Harold Capps
188 Blue Heron Lane
Knotts Island NC 27950
4299026

Dave Webber
6970 Caratoke Hwy
Jarvisburg NC 27947

4912494

April 3 2006 April 2009
1St term

May 15 2006 May 2009
1St term

Aug 2007 Aug 2010
1St term

Jan 2007 Jan 2010
1St term

33



u4 O Y Y

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Date 2 G o

Name A I u n IC 1CL

Address voTfs St9Np R

INoTrs Srv N C 79 a

Phone X15 y9 3OO G EC G 7 7 S6 7 7 O

Boardsor Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board
Game Commission

Jury Commission
Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee
ai Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Board
Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Social Services Board
Tourism Advisory Board

Whalehead Preservation Trust
Workforce Development Board

Qualifications and reasons you would like to serve

R v T H

i AC why RTTEND TF iETiv

I An Aw opc io CriizJ
Please return to County Managers Office

PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

Revised 12132006

34



Page l of 1

Gwen Keene

From Michael Carter

Sent Monday January 12 2009229 PM

To Gwen Keene

Subject February 16th 2009 BOC Agenda

Gwen

Good Afternoon and I hope all is well Couple of items

1 I wanted to ensure that we placed the North Carolina State Office of Emergency Medical Services on the
agenda for February 16th 2009 They will be presenting our County with the Designation of Model EMS
System

2 The Fire EMS Advisory Board will need several new members beginning in March 2009 I would
suggest placing this request on the February 16th agenda as well I have listed below the potentialvacancies

a Chairman Dave Messina
b Chief Chris Dailey
c Chief Rick Galganski
d Mr Butch Stegner

Please let me know if you need any further information

Thank you

Michael P Carter MPA NREMTP
Chief Emergency Medical Services
Currituck County FireEMS
PO Box 267

Currituck North Carolina 27929

252 2327746 Office
252 2320015Fax
mcarter7acocurritucknctas

Positive Progressive and Professional in Service

Confidentiality Notice Information contained in thisamail message and any attachments is for thesole use of the intended recipient s and may beconfidential andor legally privileged Any review use distribution or disclosure by others isstrictly prohibited If you have received this message inerror please immediately notify the sender by returnamail and delete all copies of this message and its attachments

1122009 35



To Board of CommissionersCurrituck County 3309

From David A Messina Chair FireEMS Advisory Board

Subject Endof Appointment Fire EMS Advisory Board

Sir Madam
The end ofmy one year appointment on the FireEMS Advisory

Has arrived ThankYoufor the opportunity to have served my community
I have instructed myAssistant ChairmanHugh McCain to set the agenda for the Apri12009
FireEMS meeting I will attend the Special Worksession on March 25and be available
To assist you at thatmeeting

Thank

You
v

David Messma

Please note

The following Board members whose terms expire April 15 2009 have expressed the desire
To be Re Appointed for another one year term

1 Rick Galganski
2Chris Dailey
3 Albert Stegner

The following members Appointment terms expire April 12010

1 Mick Lavinski

2Hugh McCaine

3Greg Laput
4 Carl Salto

36



v n D n
m

x

r v r fn

N lD

fD

p

N

n

j C
o a 3

o
C7
o

c

3
c o

m

o
o
v

n

D D v p v v
Z

rt

D fD U1

A
la W N

may

Q

Z

C
c

D
D

Z

3

a

a

a
o

03
r

m

p NO N

O O O O D

3

37



Contact Inomation

Dave Messina Chairman

252 2324604

757 4341210

mercuryainteliportcom

Hugh McCain Vice Chairman

252 4534604Home
ihmccaincembargmailcom

Michael Mick Lesinski

252 4356623 Home
mlesinskcwoLcom

AlbertButch Stegner
252 2322726Home
arste7nerhotmailcom

Carl Soltow

252 2561946Cell
252 4918508Home
252 3356257X 6258 Work
carladvboardcrernbarmaiLcom

Chief Rick Galganski Outer Bank Section Representative
252 6194442 Cell
famil4pakaaolcom

Chief Chris Dailey Mainland Section Representative
757 6477591 Cell
cldaconstructionsolutioncom

Captain Greg Laput Northern Section Representative
252 6192533 Cell
nlurphy127aeatthlinkcom

Commissioner Janet Taylor BOC Liaison

2524555396Cell
ianetta loracocurrituckncus

Chief Michael Carter Secretary
252 2327746X 4096 Work7574494574Cell
mcartera7cocurrituckncus

38



Number 2009101

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10660-532000 Supplies 1,000$                        
10660-526000 Advertising 1,000$                      

1,000$                        1,000$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Planning (10660) - To transfer funds to purchase pubic notice signs.

39



Number 2009102

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-514500 Training & education 4,100$                        
10510-536000 Uniforms 4,100$                      

4,100$                        4,100$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Sheriff (10510) - Transfer funds for ammunition to certify deputies for the remainder of this 
fiscal year.

40



Number 2009103

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10512-513000 Utilities 1,300$                        
10512-590000 Capital Outlay 100$                           
10512-561000 Professional services 1,400$                      

1,400$                        1,400$                      

Explanation:

2

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Animal Control (10512) - To transfer funds for operations for the remainder of this fiscal year.

41



Number 2009104

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530-531000 Gas,Oil, Tires 9,000$                       
10530-513000 Utilities 650$                          
10530-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 4,457$                       
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 4,457$                     
10530-544000 Volunteer Services 9,000$                     
10530-526000 Advertising 250$                        
10530-532000 Supplies 400$                        

10541-531000 Gas,Oil, Tires 600$                          
10541-514500 Training & Education 600$                        

14,707$                     10,250$                   

Explanation: Emergency Medical Services (530) - Transfer funds and increase appropriations to
accommodate budget overruns due to increase in prices, personnel and use of facilites.
The increase to repairs and maintenance is for damage incurred to ambulance in
accident.  This will be covered by thrid party insurance.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4,457.

Minute Book # ____________, Page # ____________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

42



Number 2009105

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense
10511-516000 Maintenance & Repair 15,000$                     
10511-545000 Contract services 15,000$                   

15,000$                     15,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

 Jail (10511) - Repairs to HVAC and plumbing in the jail.

43



Number 2009106

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50790-596100 Professional Services 7,417$                       
50790-594500 Contract Services 2,023$                       
50790-590000 Furnishings & Fixtures 9,440$                     

9,440$                       9,440$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - No change.

Moyock Library Construction (50790) - To transfer budgeted funds for dirt removal and 
arbitration fees.

44



Number 2009107

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531-545000 Contract Services 8,000$                       
10531-590000 Capital Outlay 15,337$                     
10330-445000 Emergency Mgmt Grant 23,337$                   

23,337$                     23,337$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $23,337.

Emergency Management (10531) - To record Emergency Management Planning Grant to 
complete the repeater move to the Corolla radio tower and to purchase a high frequency 
radio modem to be used in conjunction with the Emergency Operations center amateur radio 
(approx $4000).  This will make our amateur radio more roust by adding an internet type 
connection which will be important to have if all other communications is lost during a 
catastrophic event. The remaining amount in Capital outlay will be for future EM 
improvements as required by the grant.

45



Number 2009108

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

61818-545000 Contract Services 57,710$                     
61360-471000 Tap & connection fees 57,710$                   

57,710$                     57,710$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - Increased by $57,710.

Mainland Water Operations (61818) - To increase appropriations for DOT betterment costs 
to upgrade water lines on Tulls Creek Road from Bridge #4 over Tulls Creek to SR 1214.

46



Number 2009109

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10511-545000 Contract services 45,000$                     
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 44,000$                   
10380-482000 Miscellaneous 1,000$                     

45,000$                     44,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $45,000.

Jail - To increase appropriations to replace pumps and other damage caused by lightning 
strike on 4/20/2009.

47



North Carolina Department of Transportation
Division of FEighways

Petition for Road Addition

ROADWAY INFORMATION Please PrinUType

CountytrTVC1 Road Name tn CtirG
Please list additional street names and lengths on the back of this form

Subdivision Name 1el70 K S Length miles

Number of occupied homes having streetfrontager Location

D
CS

miles0mites N a S E W of the intersection of Route and RouteCheck one SR NC US SR NC US

We the undersigned being property owners andor developers of Wpq 1S in

kccyCk County do hereby request the Division of Highways to add the above described road

CONTACT PERSON Name and Address of First Petitioner Please PrinUType

Name E 1pnFn Phone Number 5 a X35ad

Street Address y LC L 1Clsg
Mailing Address

PROPERTY OWNERS

Name

7

337

Form SR112001
48



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
April 20, 2009 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 1:00 p.m. to discuss the 
FY 09-10 County Budget. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Etheridge, Commissioners Aydlett, Nelms, 
Rorer, Gregory and Taylor. Commissioner O’Neal was absent 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Reverend Dennis Crehan, Jarvisburg Church, was present 
to give the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner Nelms moved to amend the agenda by deleting 
Item 15, Closed Session.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 CCHS D.R.E.A.M. Team Request Regarding Maple Park    

Item 4 Consideration and Discussion:  Recommendations of the Wild Horse 
Tour Advisory Group. 

Item 5 Consideration and Action  PB 04-45 Laurel Woods Section C: Request 
for an extension of a preliminary plat approval for 9 single 
family lots located on Wildflower Lane off Aydlett Road, Tax Map 
92, Parcel 63F, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson:  Request 
to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to designate 
approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited 
Service Area to Full Service Area and to amend Water Quality 
Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact development techniques.  The 
property is located on Fisher Landing Road, Jarvisburg, Tax Map 
96, Parcel 29C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-61 High Cotton:  Request for a 
Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. The property is 
located at 1187 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 22, Parcel 88, Moyock 
Township. 

49



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   2 

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-49 Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners: Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Section 2.3.4, 
to require a community meeting for conditional zoning requests. 

Item 9 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-10 Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners: Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, to reduce the 
minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning district from 40,000 to 20,000 
square feet. 

Item 10 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-60 Albemarle & Associates:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance to establish an Offshore Island Limited Access 
Residential (OI) zoning district. This district would allow for 
the development of lots for which the only means of access is 
through public trust waters. 

Item 11 Appointments to Library Board   

Item 12 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Crowder Construction Co CO#4 
3. Charge Tax Collector the Levy on Motor Vehicles for January 

Renewals  
4. Resolution supporting an alternative method of recognition for 

veterans status to Merchant Marine Seamen of WWII 
5. Petition to DOT, Lower Currituck Fire Dept for stop light and 

lower speed limit 
6. Approval of April 6, 2009, Minutes 

Item 13 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 14 County Manager’s Report 

Item 15 Closed Session: 
1. According to 143-318 (5) land acquisition, Donald Stone, Spot 

Road, to be used for any public purpose 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public comment period. 

Doris Flora, Moyock, commended the Board on the county 
budget and not raising taxes. 

April Bennett, Bells Island, commented on a fund raiser for 
the NC Community Foundation, Currituck Kids for Friday, 
April 24. 

CCHS D.R.E.A.M. Team Request Regarding Maple Park   

50



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   3 

Sue Ingram, Currituck High School, stated that they have 
received a grant for $500 to improve the community.  They 
requested to clean up the Maple Park and paint a mural.   

Commissioner Aydlett moved to support their efforts and 
requested that they work with County Staff.  Commissioner 
Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consideration and Discussion:  Recommendations of the Wild 
Horse Tour Advisory Group. 

Kim Hoey, Wild Horse Fund, Karen McCalpin, Director of the 
Wild Horse Fund, Lynne Wilson, Planning Board member, 
commented on their recommendations from the committee. 

Bob White, Tour Operator, supports more signage and traffic 
study along with a radio. 

Commissioner Aydlett commended the Committee and moved to 
endorse their recommendations.  Commissioner Nelms seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
ATTENDEES 
 
Jay Bender, Jeff O’Brien, Scott Trabue, Billy Clayton, 
Banks Meredith, Bob White, Jerry Gillet, Alice Gillet, 
Kimberlee Hoey, Connie Johnson, Rob Longo, Bob Wright, 
Jason Banks, Jason Litteral, Karen McCalpin, Lynne 
Wilson, Ben Woody 
 
 
The Wild Horse Advisory Group generally agreed that a 
voluntary approach is most appropriate for the upcoming 
tourist season.  Each of the operators in attendance 
agreed to follow the below recommendations.  The group 
felt that voluntary compliance with the recommendations 
will help determine the true impact of wild horse tours 
on the off-road area.  Periodic meetings of the advisory 
group will continue during the course of the season to 
discuss and monitor the agreed upon course of action. 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

• TOUR COMPANIES WILL LABEL EACH SIDE OF EVERY COMPANY VEHICLE 
WITH DOOR DECALS THAT CLEARLY DISPLAY THE COMPANY NAME.  THE 
DECAL SHALL BE OF A SIZE THAT IS CLEARLY LEGIBLE (MINIMUM OF 4 
INCHES IN HEIGHT).  THIS WILL BE COMPLETED BY MAY 15, 2009.   

 
• THE WILD HORSE FUND WILL ORGANIZE AN EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM FOR 

THE TOUR COMPANY OWNERS AND STAFF. THE TRAINING WILL INCLUDE 
MEMBERS OF THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT. UPON 
COMPLETION OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM, EACH TOUR COMPANY WILL 
BE SANCTIONED BY THE WILD HORSE FUND. 

51



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   4 

 
• PROVIDE PROMOTIONAL INCENTIVES FROM THE WILD HORSE FUND AND/OR 

COUNTY TOURISM BOARD FOR TOUR COMPANIES PARTICIPATING IN 
VEHICLE LABELING AND THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM. 

 
• ENCOURAGE REALTY AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT COMPANIES TO PROVIDE 

INFORMATION REGARDING WILD HORSE TOURS.  THIS INCLUDES WEB 
LINKS TO RULES AND REGULATIONS, STREAMING AUDIO MESSAGES, AND 
PROMOTION OF SANCTIONED TOUR OPERATORS. 

 
• CURRITUCK COUNTY WILL ESTABLISH A RADIO TRANSMITTER TO 

BROADCAST BEACH DRIVING REGULATIONS AND WILD HORSE 
INFORMATION.   

 
• WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE SHALL BE SENT TO DARE COUNTY OBX 

CHRYSLER, ENTERPRISE RENTAL CAR, AND MIDGETTE AUTO INFORMING 
THEM OF THE WILD HORSE ADVISORY GROUPS RECOMMENDATIONS.  THIS 
INCLUDES COUNTY RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE OFF-ROAD AREA. 

 
• SIGNAGE SHOULD BE ERECTED IN THE OFF-ROAD AREA THAT IDENTIFIES 

UNCONTROLLED INTERESCTIONS.  SIGNAGE MAY ALSO BE USED TO 
ADVISE TOURISTS NOT TO APPROACH WILD HORSES. 

 
• ESTABLISH VOLUNTEER “COURTESY PATROL” TO WATCH TOUR GROUPS AND 

HELP WITH TRAFFIC SITUATIONS.  LOCAL RESIDENTS NEED TO 
DOCUMENT VIOLATIONS AND REPORT TO THE WILD HORSE FUND, WHICH 
WILL COLLECT AND QUANTIFY DATA. 

 
• WILD HORSE SANCTUARY PATROL OFFICERS AND TOUR GUIDES WILL 

CARRY UNIFORM LOG BOOKS TO DOCUMENT SPECIFIC DATA REGARDING 
OBSERVED VIOLATIONS.  THIS INFORMATION WILL BE TURNED OVER TO 
THE WILD HORSE FUND ON A MONTHLY BASIS. 

 
• THE RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY THIS ADVISORY GROUP SHALL BE 

CARRIED FORWARD IN ANY SPECIAL USE PERMITS THAT MAY BE 
GRANTED. 

 
• THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MAY CONSIDER ESTABLISHING A 

MORATORIUM ON NEW WILD HORSE TOUR COMPANIES UNTIL SUCH TIME AS 
REASONABLE REGULATIONS CAN BE STUDIED AND ADOPTED. 

 

Consideration and Action  PB 04-45 Laurel Woods Section C: 
Request for an extension of a preliminary plat approval for 
9 single family lots located on Wildflower Lane off Aydlett 
Road, Tax Map 92, Parcel 63F, Poplar Branch Township. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
On March 13, 2007, the Planning Board voted to approve the preliminary 
plat for Laurel Woods, Section C.  This is a nine lot subdivision 
located on Wildflower Lane, off Aydlett Road.  The preliminary plat 
approval is due to expire on March 13, 2009.  On March 6, 2009 the 
applicant, Charles Angus, submitted the attached letter (Attachment 1) 
requesting a two year preliminary plat extension of the subdivision.   
 

52



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   5 

According to Section 11.10.2 of the UDO: 
 
11.10.2 Special Use and Conditional Use Permits 
 
B. The permit issuing authority may extend one time for a period up to 

two years the date when a permit would otherwise expire, if it 
concludes that:   

 
1. The permit has not yet expired, (Applicant submitted extension 

request prior to plat expiration) 
 
2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in 

good faith; and,  (Applicant states in March 6, 2009 letter 
that clearing and construction has been started.  Waterline 
installation was approved on September 23, 2008) 

 
3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a 

new application.  Successive extensions shall not be granted.  
All such extensions may be granted without resort to the 
formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   (There 
have been no substantial changes in the application) 

Charles Angus requested a 2 year extension. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to approve.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use 
map from Limited Service Area to Full Service Area and to 
amend Water Quality Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact 
development techniques.  The property is located on Fisher 
Landing Road, Jarvisburg, Tax Map 96, Parcel 29C, Poplar 
Branch Township. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
Eddie Valdivieso is requesting an amendment to the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited Service area to 
Full Service area.  Staff is also recommending a change to Water Quality Policy (WQ5) to 
properly promote low impact development techniques. 
 
As required by the Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA), the Board of Commissioners must 
approve a local resolution of adoption which includes findings that demonstrate this amendment 
is consistent with the policy objectives of the Plan.  Additionally, the County must demonstrate the 
amendment will not adversely affect the provision of services and infrastructure.  Once the 
appropriate findings and local resolution of adoption are approved, the amendment will then be 
considered by the Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) for formal certification. 
 
Enclosed please find the following information: 

• map of the proposed amendment area (page 2) 
• case analysis for Full Service area request and addendum for Policy WQ5 (pages 3 - 9) 
• meeting minutes of the Planning Board (pages 10 - 11) 
• local resolution of adoption and findings of plan consistency (page 12) 

53



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   6 

• Land Use Plan amendments (pages 13 - 14) 
• supplementary information submitted by the applicant (new pages 1 - 33) 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

Eddie Valdivieso, Engineer, reviewed the request. 

Jerry Wright, stated he supports the concept but he has 
concerns about the water fowl and how to address with the 
property owner. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public hearing. 

Commissioner Rorer moved to approve due to its consistency 
with the Coastal Area Management Act and that the amendment 
is consistent with the six management topics outlined in 
the current land use plan.  Further the approval is 
contingent upon establishment of permit within 5 years, 
otherwise the approval to Full Service designation is 
rescinded and the Future Land Use map reverts back to the 
original Limited Service designation.  Chairman Etheridge 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-61 High Cotton:  Request 
for a Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. 
The property is located at 1187 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 
22, Parcel 88, Moyock Township. 

Sworn testimony was given before making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR 252 MULTI-FAMILY DWELLINGS 
 
LOCATION: 1187 Caratoke Highway, Moyock Township 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Conditional District - General Business (CD-GB) 

- The following GB uses are excluded from the 
property: 

o Reclamation landfill 
o Demolition landfill 
o Convenience center 
o Mobile homes 

- Outdoor storage shall be fully screened from 
public rights of way using a combination of 
landscaping and/or opaque fencing. 

- Site access shall be limited to one access 
point from Caratoke Highway, but access from 
other roadways is not prohibited. 

- No more than one-tenth of one acre of 
development or land disturbing activities, 
except for roads, utilities, or other 

54



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   7 

necessary public improvements, shall occur 
in Army Corps of Engineers delineated 
wetlands. 

- A 50’ buffer along the upland portion of the 
property adjacent to Rowland Creek Canal (on 
north-west side of the property) shall be 
provided. No land disturbance or development 
shall occur in this buffer area except as 
needed for required maintenance of the 
canal. Maintenance of the canal shall 
require approval from the necessary state 
and local agencies 

 
TAX ID:  Tax Map 22, Parcel 88 (002200000880000) 
 
OWNER: Highland Properties 
 
APPLICANT: Edgewater Construction 
 
NARRATIVE: 
Edgewater Construction is requesting a special use permit for a 252 
dwelling apartment complex on this 101.1 acre site. In the development 
impact statement submitted 12-19-08, the applicant states this project 
will provide workforce housing options in a mixed use development.  
 
This application has been submitted with preliminary engineered 
construction drawings.  Should the Board of Commissioners approve the 
special use permit, a revised plan including final engineered 
construction drawings and all State permits must be approved by the 
Technical Review Committee prior to the commencement of any 
construction or land development activities. 
 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential and Wetlands Zoned: A 
SOUTH: Agricultural Zoned: A 
EAST: Agricultural Zoned: A 
WEST: Agricultural - Ranchland Sub. 

(Across 168) 
Zoned: C, A, R 

 
DENSITY: The proposed gross density is 2.49 units per 

acre on the entire 101 acre property. The 
multi-family project area is 17.2 acres with a 
net density of 14.65 units per acre. Since 
there is no subdivision being proposed, the 
applicant is utilizing the UDO provision for 
Multi-Family developments (section 3.2.6) and 
using the entire 101 acre property for the 
project. 

 
STREETS: The streets are required to be built to NCDOT 

Design and Construction standards. The proposed 
entrance road is proposed to be a private 
street. 

 
FIRE: This development is located within the 

jurisdiction of the Moyock Volunteer Fire 
Department. The applicant is proposing to 

55



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   8 

install fire hydrants, but is not proposing to 
install a sprinkler system in the apartments. 

 
WATER: This development is proposing to connect to 

county water. There is an elevated water 
storage tank on the property. 

 
WASTEWATER: This property was denied a conventional 

wastewater system permit on February 13, 2007 
by Albemarle Regional Health Systems. The 
applicant is proposing to connect to a planned 
central wastewater system at the Currituck 
Reserve subdivision. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils Map indicates the 

areas proposed for development contain poorly 
drained soils. 

 
OPEN SPACE: The required open space for the 101 acre 

property is 30.3 acres (since the applicant is 
using the entire 101 acres to calculate 
density, a corresponding calculation must be 
used to establish open space).  The open space 
is proposed to be distributed throughout the 
site, with 6.0 acres common open space provided 
within the multi-family development. 

 
DRAINAGE: The applicant is proposing to use an engineered 

stormwater system. The initial drainage plan 
was denied at the November 19, 2008 TRC meeting 
because it was based on uncertain data. A 
revised engineered drainage plan has been 
submitted and reviewed that addresses earlier 
concerns with regard to site elevation and the 
seasonal high water table. 

 
 
 
TRC REVIEW 
A Technical Review Meeting was held on November 19, 2008 and the 
reviewing agencies had the following comments: 
 
Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Approved with the following comments: 
• An engineered plan has been submitted that addresses earlier 

concerns regarding elevations and the seasonal high water table.  
The proposal is to build up the entire site above the 100 year 
storm/base flood elevation of 5 feet above seal level.  The same 
principle was used at the Currituck Crossing subdivision. 

 
Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
Approved with the following comments and conditions: 
• Foundations will need to be engineered due to poor soil compaction. 
• A soils engineer report will be required for all buildings. 
• May need handicap parking at the garage. 
 
North Carolina Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens 
Approved with the following comments: 

56



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   9 

• A 30 foot buffer is required along the Rowland Creek Canal.  
Indicate Normal Water Level (NWL) of the canal and the 30 foot 
buffer on the Master Plan and Site Plan.  Activities and/or 
development within the 30 foot buffer may require a CAMA Permit. 

 
North Carolina Department of Transportation, Roger Ward 
Denied with the following comments: 
• Several of the major land uses have changed from the site plan 

previously submitted and approved. As such, I think a revised TIA 
needs to be completed reflecting the new land uses and construction 
phasing. 

• In consideration of all the changes, I would suggest consideration 
of revoking the driveway permit recently issued. The new revised 
master plan may require different roadway improvements and/or a 
different timetable for those improvements to occur. Bonding for a 
traffic signal and a phase 2 installation was required under the 
previously submitted site plan and driveway permit. 

 
***Staff notes a revised Transportation Impact Analysis has been 
submitted to NCDOT for review. 
 
 
QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Suggested Staff Findings: 
 
Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners 
flexibility in the administration of the UDO. Through the Special Use 
Permit procedure, property uses which would otherwise be considered 
undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to Conditions 
of Approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, certain criteria must be 
satisfied.  The criteria and suggested findings of fact are outlined as 
follows: 
 
1. The Application is complete: 
 

• The application is not complete as it does not include a letter 
of commitment from a wastewater provider as required by Section 
9.2.7.2(E).  The applicant will need to demonstrate central 
wastewater capacity, or the Board of Commissioners will need to 
issue the Special Use Permit contingent upon the applicant 
receiving the appropriate approvals. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible 

Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”: 
 

• This use complies with the Table of Permissible uses and 
is allowed in the CD-GB district placed on the 
property on 9-2-2008. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of 

this ordinance: 
 

• The project generally meets the requirements of the UDO.  Any 
environmental concerns associated with the development of the 

57



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   10 

site must be properly addressed prior to commencement of the 
proposed use. 

 
• The additional conditions recommended by staff ensure the 

development will meet or exceed the requirements of this 
ordinance. 

 
4. The special use will not materially endanger the public health or 

safety: 
 

• The use will not directly endanger the public health of safety 
provided stormwater is properly managed on this site. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property and will be in harmony with the area in which it is 
located: 

 
• The adjoining properties are agricultural and low density 

residential dwellings. This use is not necessarily in harmony 
with the area because there is not compatible high density or 
commercial development in the immediate area.  However, it may 
provide an opportunity to establish a controversial use in an 
otherwise isolated area. 

 
6. The proposed use will be general conformity with the Land Use Plan 

or other officially adopted plan: 
 

• The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the subject property as Rural 
and within the Moyock sub-area.   
§ In the Rural Classification, population densities are 

generally very low and development density is anticipated at 
no more than 1 unit per 3 acres.  Preferred uses include very 
low density residential and non-residential uses are typically 
discouraged 

§ For the Moyock sub-area, residential development densities 
should be medium to high depending upon available services.  
In areas where central sewer is proposed or existing, 
additional services are available and the character of the 
surrounding areas supports it, higher density ranging from 3-4 
units per acre could be considered through the use of overlay 
zones.  There are existing environmentally sensitive areas 
that cannot support higher density development and do not have 
access to services that are therefore classified as Rural or 
Conservation. 

 
• Policy ES1 states that new development shall be permitted in 

areas with suitable soil and where adequate infrastructure is 
available.  For existing development located on poor soils, and 
where sewage treatment upgrades are necessary, engineering 
solutions may be supported, provided that environmental concerns 
are fully addressed. 

 
• Policy WS3 states that Currituck County endorses utilities 

extension policies that focus water and sewer services (1) within 
existing developed areas and in nearby targeted growth areas 
identified as Full Service and Limited Service areas, (2) where 
development densities would make the provision of all public 
services more efficient, (3) where the land is particularly well 

58



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   11 

suited for development and (4) away from environmentally 
sensitive areas, such as areas with extensive wetlands. 

 
• Policy HN5 states that affordable forms of housing other than 

manufactured housing are often overlooked in meeting the needs of 
young families, workers of modest income, senior citizens and 
others. 

 
• Staff feels there are Land Use Plan policies that support 

attached housing in the County (staff also supports the idea of 
diverse housing options spread throughout the county).  However, 
the location and environmental conditions of this particular 
development are not supported by the Land Use Plan as it is 
currently adopted.  For this reason, this special use does not 
comply with the 2006 Land Use Plan. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, 
fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when applicable facilities are adequate.  Such 
facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place within two 
years after the initial approval of the sketch plan.  In the case of 
subdivision and multi-family development at the sketch plan/special 
use, preliminary plat or final plat stage, the Board of 
Commissioners may establish time limits on the number of lots/units 
available for development to assure adequate public facilities are 
available in: 

 
• The proposed multifamily use will not exceed the county's ability 

to provide adequate public facilities. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed development does not meet the criteria for granting a 
Special Use Permit and therefore staff recommends denial until such 
time as the following items can be corrected or addressed: 
 
1. The project must provide a letter of commitment from a wastewater 

provider as required by Section 9.2.7.2(E) of the UDO prior to the 
development of the property. 

 
2. The current 2006 Currituck County Land Use Plan does not support a 

high density development on this property. Therefore, staff 
recommends that this project not be approved until a Moyock small 
area plan is adopted or the Land Use Plan is amended to reflect the 
impact of central wastewater on the Moyock Sub-Area. 

 
Should the Board of Commissioners approve this request, staff 
recommends the following permit conditions: 
 
1. An NC Erosion and Sedimentation Control permit and NC Stormwater 

permit shall be submitted prior to land disturbing activities.  
 
2. A revised Transportation Impact Analysis must be approved by NCDOT.  

Any recommended changes by NCDOT shall be included on construction 
drawings. 

 

59



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   12 

3. This project shall not retain any vested rights until a revised site 
plan and construction drawings are submitted and approved by the 
Currituck County Technical Review Committee. Any approvals issued by 
the Board of Commissioners are conditional on receiving full TRC 
approval prior to being granted a vested right. 

 
4. A minimum 35% of the entire 101 acre site must be reserved for open 

space associated with the multifamily project.  The open space 
dedication must include 50% upland area and be accessible to the 
residents of the multifamily development. 

 
5. To ensure the zoning conditions are being met on wetlands 

disturbance, staff recommends that all land disturbing activities 
not occur within 5 feet of the wetlands and no improvements be 
proposed within 10 feet of the wetlands. 

 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked if wetlands were used to determine the density. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes. 
 
Mr. West asked if the walking trails will be on the wetlands. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that they could have some on wetlands, but 50% of the 
required open space will have to be on uplands.  
 
Ms. Wilson asked for clarification on where the walking trails will be 
within the open space area. 
 
Ms. Venable stated the trails they are proposing from the buildings 
will be one mile long.  
 
Ms. Venable stated that 2 foot of fill will have to be provided on site 
for the areas that need to be filled.   
 
Ms. Venable addressed the Land Use Plan (LUP) and stated the Board has 
the ability to overrule the LUP. When the plan was put together water 
and sewer was not available on the site. One-third of the property is 
wet which they want to put this into open space. Sixty-seven acres is 
uplands along Caratoke Highway which is surrounded on three sides with 
a full service district.  Within this property which is zoned general 
business/commercial you can have mixed uses that would included 
assisted living, retail, and multi-family.  There is a water tower on 
the site. Ms. Venable provided a letter from the county that stated in 
2010 sewer will be provided by the county right in front of the 
property. If sewer is not available through the county then they would 
have a sewer system on the back of the site. Ms. Venable provided an 
overview of the site. It will be a gated community; the buildings will 
be 3 stories, 1 to 3 bedrooms, a recreation building, pool, open space, 
walking trail, and a fitness facility.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated that the county will provide Smith Packett 
(assisted living) a force-main line to the wastewater treatment plant 
which is scheduled to be completed in July of 2010. The line will be in 
front of their project, but the question of whether the Board of 
Commissioners will allow residential hook-up to the sewer system is 
still being discussed. Mr. Everhart stated if the commissioners do not 
allow residential hook-up then they would put in a package plant on the 
site.  
 

60



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   13 

Mr. West stated he was under the impression that High Cotton was 
connected to the assisted living facility. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated they are selling them the property for the assisted 
living facility. 
 
Mr. West referred to the letter the board received from Mr. Innes 
referring to this project being affordable housing and a gated 
community.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated it will be a gated community for security purposes 
because of the amount of traffic with 252 units. 
 
Mr. West asked Mr. Everhart to define affordable living. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated approximately $780 per month. They will consist of 
1, 2, and 3 bedroom units. There will be seven full time staff on site.  
 
Mr. Clark stated in the letter it states these units are being built so 
the residents of Currituck will have affordable housing. Is there a 
plan in place to give Currituck residents priority over other 
residents? 
 
Mr. Everhart stated they are willing to work this out.  Mr. Everhart 
stated Currituck’s work force will get first shot at the units, but 
they have to be competitive. The project will be built in two phases. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if any of the units will be handicap accessible.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated yes. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated she agrees that Currituck does need affordable 
housing, but is concerned because the current 2006 Land Use Plan does 
not support a high density development on this property.  
 
Mr. Everhart stated the stormwater system and parking lots will all 
drain into a peat filtration system. Before any stormwater off these 
buildings or parking lots gets into one of the retention ponds it will 
have been filtered 94%.   
 
Mr. Bell asked how long it would take to construct your own wastewater 
system. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated approximately 3 months using a pre-engineer system 
which is factory made. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. Woody if the county has any ladder trucks. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that the county has a 35 foot height requirement for 
buildings.  
 
Mr. West asked if all the Technical Review Committee (TRC) agencies 
submitted comments on this project. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that all the county departments did review this plan. 
 
Mr. Everhart stated they have had three public meetings on the project 
and ended up with 150 positive comments and had only one negative 
comment. 
 

61



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   14 

Ms. Kinney stated this project is needed in the community which blends 
the young and old. Ms. Kinney passed around a petition with signatures 
in favor of the project. She stated this project is good for the 
community and it is a good location.  
 
Mr. Innes stated that to succeed in business your product or service 
must meet two criteria: 1) that people must want it, and 2) that it 
will benefit the community.  The assisted living and multi-family meet 
these criteria.  This is not subsidized housing, it will be a community 
which is well run, and it will provide homes for people who do not want 
or cannot afford a single family home.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated the biggest issue is the LUP, if this request was 
approved, will this approval change the LUP?  
 
Mr. Woody stated they are just considering the Special Use Permit.  
 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Etheridge motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations 
for a Special Use Permit for 252 multi-family dwellings. Mr. Kovacs 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

Melisa Venable, Engineer, reviewed the waste water and plans for site. 

Brian Innes, supports the request. 

Sara Alford, stated that they were not affordable housing. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public hearing. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to approve with findings of fact 
and staff recommendations included in the case analysis and 
that the application is complete subject to a letter of 
wastewater commitment and the proposal is consistent with 
Policy HN5 of the Land Use Plan.  Commissioner Nelms 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried with Chairman 
Etheridge and Commissioner Aydlett voting no. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-49 Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners: Request to amend the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, 
Section 2.3.4, to require a community meeting for 
conditional zoning requests. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
The enclosed text amendment was withdrawn by the Board of Commissioners 
at their October 20, 2008 meeting.  It is now being moved forward again 
for reconsideration by the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners. 
 

62



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   15 

The amendment as presented would require a community meeting for 
conditional zoning requests. Currently the Unified Development 
Ordinance only recommends that a community meeting be held.  
Additionally, it is worth noting that standard rezoning requests do not 
recommend or require any type of community meeting.  The Planning Board 
may wish to consider a uniform community meeting standard for any type 
of rezoning request to avoid discouragement of the conditional zoning 
process. 
 
What follows are the minutes from the March 10 Planning Board meeting 
and a draft of the text amendment as described above.  The Planning 
Board recommended unanimous approval of this request with the 
modification that a Planning Board member be present for the community 
meeting.  Rather than include this modification in the text of the UDO, 
staff is recommending it be integrated with the application materials. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the planning board members will be required to 
participate in the community meeting. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the full planning board does not have to be present 
but it would be a good idea to have representation of the planning 
board at these meetings. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval of the text amendment to 
require a community meeting for conditional zoning requests with the 
addition that a planning board member be present. Mr. West seconded the 
motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

There being no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Chairman Etheridge moved to approve due to its consistency 
with the policies of the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the 
request is reasonable and in the public interest and 
promotes orderly growth and development.  Commissioner 
Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Nelms and Gregory voting no. 

Public Hearing and Action PB 09-10 Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners: Request to amend the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, 
to reduce the minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning district 
from 40,000 to 20,000 square feet. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
The Currituck County Board of Commissioners is requesting a text 
amendment that would reduce the minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning 
district from 40,000 to 20,000 square feet.  If approved, this request 
would primarily affect the Whalehead subdivision, Ocean Hill One 
subdivision, and Corolla Village area.  However, it is important to 
note that the majority of the platted lots in these areas are already 

63



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   16 

in the range of 20,000 square feet in size (particularly in the 
Whalehead and Ocean Hill One subdivisions).   
 
The remaining subdivisions in the Corolla area are typically zoned as 
Planned Unit Developments, which allow for a minimum lot size of 10,000 
square feet.   
 
What follows are the minutes from the March 10 Planning Board meeting 
and a draft of the text amendment as described above.  The Planning 
Board recommended unanimous denial of this request. 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Midgette asked if this is county owned property. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the county wants to create two lots and deed the two 
lots to a private individual. In return the county would receive east-
west roads in the Whalehead subdivision. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Wilson motioned to recommend denial of the text amendment to reduce 
the minimum lot size in the RO1 zoning district from 40,000 to 20,000 
square feet because the Whalehead subdivision is crowded and smaller 
ocean front homes are being taken down and replaced with larger homes.  
Mr. West seconded the motioned. Motion carried unanimously.  

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing.  There being 
no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to approve due to its consistency 
with the policies of the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the 
request is reasonable and in the public interest and 
promotes orderly growth and development.  Commissioner 
Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-60 Albemarle & Associates:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance to establish an Offshore Island Limited Access 
Residential (OI) zoning district. This district would allow 
for the development of lots for which the only means of 
access is through public trust waters. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
Albemarle and Associates is requesting a text amendment to the UDO to 
establish an Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) zoning 
district (Option 1).  This would allow for the limited development of 
lots for which the only means of access is through public trust waters.  
In other words, this request would create a zoning district that 
permits construction activities on a tract of land that does not abut a 
public or private street, and is only accessible by water. 
 
As an alternative, staff is recommending the consideration of a text 
amendment that simply allows the development of island lots within the 
existing zoning and subdivision ordinances (Option 2).  Rather than 

64



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   17 

create a separate zoning district for island lot development, this 
option would allow the owner of an island to receive a building permit 
under an exemption clause.  At their February 10 meeting, the Planning 
Board motioned to approve this option with additional language 
requiring a minimum lot size of eight acres and the availability of 
private parking on the mainland for each dwelling.  However, due to a 
tie vote, the official action was for a recommendation of denial. 
 
Previously in June of 2005 and September of 2007, text amendment 
requests with similar objectives were submitted for consideration.  In 
both instances, the Planning Board recommended approval.  The original 
amendment request in 2005 was subsequently withdrawn and no action was 
taken by the Board of Commissioners.  The 2007 amendment request was 
heard and denied by the Board of Commissioners at their January 22, 
2008 meeting. 
 
Planning staff did recommend denial of the 2005 request and pointed out 
that if approved, the amendment would apply countywide and create 
increased pressure for the provision of County services (there are 21 
privately owned islands off the Currituck Mainland, which may or may 
not be developable).  The following reasons were specifically given for 
denial at that time: 

• County services will not be available for lots only accessible 
through public trust waters.  This includes Fire, EMS, Law 
Enforcement, Public School Transportation, etc. 

• Non-availability of public utilities such as water, power, 
telephone, cable television, etc. 

• There is no efficient means to provide solid waste disposal. 
 
The 2007 request generated many of the same concerns as the 2005 
request, and as a result, planning staff met with other County 
departments regarding the provision of services.  This meeting was 
attended by the applicant, Planning Staff, and representatives of the 
Sheriff’s Office, Emergency Management, and Emergency Medical Services.   
 
Several concerns were raised at the meeting, during which it was 
decided to expand upon the existing draft while relying on the legal 
guidance of the County Attorney.  Following the initial meeting it was 
determined by the Attorney that the County is not legally liable if 
there is an inability to provide timely services.  It was also 
recommended that the text amendment include a provision requiring a 
notification or waiver related to the possible inadequate provision of 
services.   
 
In contrast to previous amendment requests, this proposal submitted by 
the applicant takes a different approach by creating a zoning district 
that provides for the development of island lots.  While the procedure 
by which the development of island lots occurs is different, it still 
generates the same outcome...the development of lots that are only 
accessible by public trust waters. 
 
From an administration standpoint, planning staff prefers an amendment 
request similar to the one filed in 2007, but with additional detail 
regarding the provision of county services.  The creation of a new 
zoning district is cumbersome and would still require a rezoning 
application to be processed.  If the Board supports the allowance of 
island lots, it seems more appropriate to handle this in the existing 
zoning and subdivision ordinances.  Provided of course the applicant is 

65



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   18 

able to resolve any issues expressed by the Sheriff’s Office, Emergency 
Management, and Emergency Medical Services. 
 
Finally, an additional meeting was held with the applicant and county 
service provision departments on December 3, 2008.  Concerns expressed 
at this meeting included a waiver of county services, the possibility 
of higher density development, and dredging associated with pier 
access. 
 
What follows are two draft versions of the text amendment as submitted 
by the applicant.  Option 1 creates an island zoning district and 
option 2 creates an exemption to the street access requirement.  Should 
you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-6029.   
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (February 2009 meeting) 
Mr. West stated if there were no county services on these islands and 
they were to build on the island, then a county building inspector 
would have to go there to inspect the property.  
 
Mr. Woody stated the applicant would be responsible for providing 
transportation for the building inspector as well as other county 
departments.  
 
Mr. Overton stated what they are asking for in this text amendment is 
for individuals who own an island to have the right to be able to 
request a building permit. Mr. Overton stated this does not give them a 
building permit, it does not give them the right to “develop an 
island”, rather it is restoring their right to request a building 
permit.  
 
Ms. Robbins asked how septic systems would be pumped. 
 
Mr. Overton stated these are issues that would need to be worked out by 
the applicant. Mr. Overton stated that other coastal counties that do 
allow dwellings to be built on islands, these same challenges exist 
there as well and these challenges are addressed.   
 
The planning board discussed parking available on the mainland for each 
dwelling, the potential to create a major or minor subdivision on an 
island, creating a unique zoning district vs. creating exceptions to 
the requirements for street access and density. 
 
Mr. Overton stated that if the owners could exercise their right to 
request a building permit, then all zoning requirements would be 
applicable as it is with the mainland.  
 
Mr. Woody estimated that 90% of the potentially developable islands in 
the county are zoned Residential (R).  
 
Mr. Overton stated they have had several meetings with the sheriff and 
various emergency departments. Their concern has not been one of 
providing services but a concern of liability of timelessness.   
 
Mr. Bell stated his concern is with the environmental impact it will 
have on the islands.  
 
Mr. Clark stated he is concerned with changing the character of 
Currituck County by changing the zoning district to OI which would 
allow the possible development of these islands and set a precedent for 
the development off other islands in Currituck Sound.   

66



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   19 

 
Mr. Overton stated that this request is only asking if you owned an 
island that you have the ability to ask for a building permit.  
 
Mr. West asked if the applicant would put a waiver that there is a 
density of 1 building per island.  
 
Mr. Overton stated he would prefer the density of 1 per 5 acres.   
 
Mr. Woody stated that density related to CAMA wetlands cannot be used 
for lot area, so the minimum lot size would have to be exclusive of any 
CAMA wetlands.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval of Option 2 with the addition 
of parking available on the mainland for each dwelling unit and a 5 
acre minimum lot size.  Mr. West amended Mr. Kovacs motion and changed 
the 5 acres to 8 acres minimum lot size.  Mr. Kovacs seconded the 
motion. Ayes: Mr. West, Mr. Midgette, Ms. Wilson, and Mr. Kovacs.  
Nays:  Mr. Bell, Mr. Clark, Mr. Etheridge, and Ms. Robbins.  Motion 
failed because it did not receive the majority of the votes. 
  
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (December 2008 meeting) 
Mr. Midgette asked Mr. Webb if the density issue had been discussed 
with the applicant. 
 
Mr. Webb stated yes. 
 
The Planning Board discussed density, pier access, parking on the 
mainland, dredging, and a waiver for county services.  
 
Mr. Hain addressed questions from the board on the above issues. Mr. 
Hain stated they would like to create a new zoning district at this 
point.   
 
The Planning Board talked about tabling this proposal until they can 
hold a workshop with the county commissioners so some of the issues can 
be worked out. 
 
Mr. Hain stated his client would want to go forward with this request 
and not for it to be tabled.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to tabled PB 08-60 Island Lots until the Planning 
Board has a workshop meeting with the county commissioners.  Ms. Turner 
seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

John Delucia, Albemarle & Associates, reviewed the request 
to the Board. 

Commissioner Rorer questioned public safety and response 
from Sheriff, EMS, etc. 

Jay Overton, Albemarle & Associates, requested the Board’s 
support. 

67



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   20 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public hearing. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to approve.  Chairman Etheridge 
seconded the motion.  Motion failed with Commissioners 
Aydlett, Rorer and Nelms voting no. 

Appointments to Library Board  

Commissioner Nelms moved to table. Commissioner Gregory 
seconded the motion.  

Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Crowder Construction Co CO#4 
3. Charge Tax Collector the Levy on Motor Vehicles for 

January Renewals  
4. Resolution supporting an alternative method of 

recognition for veterans status to Merchant Marine 
Seamen of WWII 

5. Petition to DOT, Lower Currituck Fire Dept for stop 
light and lower speed limit 

6. Approval of April 6, 2009, Minutes 
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to approve.  Commissioner Gregory 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
23690-545000  Contract Services   $                  17,013    

23390-499900  
Fund Balance 
Appropriated     $                17,013  

       
     $                  17,013    $                17,013  
       
       
Explanation: 
 

Moyock Fire District (23690) - To appropriate funds remaining in the Moyock 
district tax fund for building and vehicle repairs as per letter dated March 23, 2009. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Moyock Fire District Tax Fund (23) - Increased by $17,013. 
 
 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 

68



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   21 

       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
66868-545000  Contracted Services     $                  1,000  
66868-511010  Data Transmission   $                    1,000    
       
     $                    1,000    $                  1,000  
       
Explanation: 

 

Southern Outer Banks Water System (66868) - Transfer funds for an additional 
internet connection for the GIS computer for the Southern Outer Banks Water 
System. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water System (66) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
55818-563000  Prof Services - Dist System  879   

55818-593009  
Dist Syst - DOT Betterment 
Costs 1,631   

55818-592001  H20 Plant - RO Plant  45,696   
55818-588003  Contingency - Dist System    44,815 
55818-593007  Dist Syst - 16" RO to Currituck   3,391 
     $                 48,206    $               48,206  
       
Explanation: 
 

 
 

Mainland Water Construction Fund (55818) - To transfer budgeted funds to 
increase professional services for permit fees and increased cost of DOT 
betterment  on Tulls Creek Road, increase RO Plant for Crowder change order #4, 
and decrease 16" line from RO plant to Currituck Tower to adjust to bid price. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

10390-499900  
Fund balance 
appropriated                     317,860    

10380-425000  Public School Capital Bldg Fund                   317,860  
       
     $                317,860    $              317,860  
       

69



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   22 

Explanation: 

 

Other Revenues (10380) - To record approval of Public School Capital Building 
Funds for a portion of the debt payment for the Currituck County High School that 
is due June 2009. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
60808-516001  Repairs and Maintenance   $                  35,000    
60808-545001  Contracted Services     $                35,000  
       
     $                  35,000    $                35,000  
       
       
Explanation: 
 

Ocean Sands (60808) - To transfer funds for additional repairs for sewer 
operations. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (60) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10510-513000  Utilities   $                    2,000    
10510-516000  Repairs & Maintenance   $                    8,000    
10510-531000  Gas, Oil & Tires   $                  10,950    
10510-514000  Travel     $                  2,000  
10510-521000  Rent     $                  2,450  
10510-561000  Professional Services     $                  3,500  
10510-536000  Uniforms     $                  5,000  
10510-554000  Insurance & Bonds     $                     305  
10510-590000  Capital Outlay     $                  7,695  
       
     $                  20,950    $                20,950  
       
       
Explanation: Sheriff (10510) - Transfer funds for operations for the remainder of this year. 
Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

70



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   23 

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
61818-557000  Refunds   $                    1,400    
61818-540000  Worker's Compensation     $                  1,400  
       
     $                    1,400    $                  1,400  
       
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Mainland Water (61818) - This request is to increase refunds in order to refund a 
water tap fee for a customer that was initially paid in June 1996.  This property is 
in the Hunters Woods subdivision and there is currently no County water in this 
subdivision. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

10795-576017  
Community League - 
Aerobics  $                    4,000    

10350-469017  Aerobics     $                  4,000  
       
     $                    4,000    $                  4,000  
       
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Parks & Recreation (10795) - To budget funds for aerobics and yoga classes 
through recreation. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

71



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   24 

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

61818-533800  Chemicals   $                    9,000    
61818-590000  Capital Outlay   $                    1,500    
61818-514000  Travel     $                  1,000  
61818-526000  Advertising     $                     500  
61818-590003  Hydrants     $                  7,000  
61818-536000  Uniforms     $                     500  
61818-561000  Professional Services     $                  1,500  
       
     $                  10,500    $                10,500  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

 

Mainland Water (61818) - Transfer for increased chemical cost due to 
preparations to start up new reverse osmosis plant. We will need to add 
antiscalant, sodium hypochlorite, and caustic soda along with the existing 
chemicals we are using.  Also for underground sprinkler system for Mainland plant 
to be installed by staff. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10660-557000  Refunds   $                    8,500    

10390-499900  
Appropriated fund 
balance     $                  8,500  

       
     $                    8,500    $                  8,500  
       
Explanation: 
 

Planning (10660) - To refund special use permit for North Ridge development paid 
in 2006 and the project application wasn't completed. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SUPPORTING AN ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RECOGNITON FOR VETERANS 

STATUS TO MERCHANT MARINE SEAMEN OF WW II 
 

WHEREAS, Public Laws 95-202 and 105-368 bestowed veteran 
status on US Merchant Marine Seamen of WWII.   
WHEREAS, two specific U.S. government actions by US 
government have caused some 10,000 merchant seamen to have 
been denied their due recognition:   

(1) The USCG relieving Masters of tugs, towboats and 
seagoing barges of the responsibility submitting 
reports of seamen shipped and discharged and 

72



April 20, 2009, BOC Meeting   25 

(2) The National Maritime Administration ordered  
ship’s logbooks to be destroyed because they were too 
costly to  maintain had removed the two main criteria 
required by the government to issue official 
recognition to those seamen, and 

WHEREAS, the average age of the remaining seamen is above 
86 and the population of the US veteran is shrinking at an 
average of 850 per year causing time to be of the essence, 
and 
WHEREAS,  No costs are associated with this proposal as 
funds area already included in above public laws. 
WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
therefore request that immediate action be taken to correct 
this inconceivable action..  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners supports the attached proposal and 
so orders that this Resolution and attached proposal be 
sent to Senator Kay Hagan, Senator Richard Burr, 
Congressman Walter B. Jones and Congressman G. K. 
Butterfield and this matter be placed into action to ensure 
expedient passage. 

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Taylor expressed concerns with railroad 
crossings. 

Commissioner Gregory commented on Mediacom canceling the TV 
Guide channel. 

Commissioner Rorer requested citizens to call the Manager 
regarding their input on the budget. 

County Manager’s Report 

No comments 

Closed Session: 
1. According to 143-318 (5) land acquisition, Donald 

Stone, Spot Road, to be used for any public purpose. 
Deleted 
 
Adjourn 
 

73



Number TDA2009009

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-590000 Capital Outlay 18,271$                     
15442-590441 Technology > $1,000 18,271$                   

18,271$                     18,271$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - No change.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - To transfer funds from Technology over $1,000 to capital 
outlay for an additional display case and pedestiran counter in the Moyock Welcome 
Center.

74



Number TDA2009010

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-516000 Maintenance & Repair 2,500$                       
15442-540000 Worker's compensation 2,500$                     

2,500$                       2,500$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - No change.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - To transfer excess worker's compensation funds for 
maintenance on HVAC at the Visitor's Center in Corolla and vehicle repairs.

75



Number TDA2009011

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-526200 Promotional Efforts 26,750$                     
15442-532000 Supplies 5,000$                       
15442-514500 Tranining and Education 5,000$                     
15350-465002 Co-op advertising 26,750$                   

31,750$                     31,750$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 4th day of May 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $26,750.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - To transfer funds to supplies for operations and to record 
Co-op payments for advertising.

76


	Agenda
	Proclamation for the National Day of Prayer
	National Day of Prayer

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-56 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 09-05 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 09-11 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 00-44 case analysis
	PB 00-44 site plan

	Appointments to ABC Board
	ABC Board Appointments

	Appointments to Fire & EMS Advisory Board
	Fire & EMS Appts

	Budget amendments
	May 4_Budget amendment

	Petition to NCDOT for Addition of Pine Circle to State System
	Pine Circle Road Petition

	Approval of April 20, 2009, Minutes
	April 20 Minutes

	TDA Budget amendments
	TDA Budget amendments


